


CITY OF SHOREWOOD COUNCIL CHAMBERS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2021 7:00P.M.  

DRAFT MINUTES

CALL TOORDER

ChairMaddycalled themeeting toorderat7:01P.M.  

ROLL CALL

Present: ChairMaddy; Commissioners Eggenberger, Huskins, Gault (arrivedat7:05P.M.)  
andRiedel; Planning Director Darling; and, Council Liaison Johnson

Absent: Commissioners Huskins

1. APPROVAL OFAGENDA

Riedel moved, Eggenberger seconded, approving the agenda forNovember 16, 2021, as
presented. Motion passed 3/0.   

2. APPROVAL OFMINUTES

October 5, 2020

Eggenberger moved, Riedel seconded, approving thePlanning Commission Meeting
Minutes ofOctober 5, 2021, aspresented. Motion passed 3/0.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR - NONE

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – NONE

5. NEW BUSINESS

A. Subdivision Variance
Applicant:  Zehnder Homes, Inc.  
Location:  24835 Yellowstone Trail

Planning Director Darlingexplained therequest tosubdivide theproperty intotwolotsandfora
variance toallowtheeasterly lottobe99.65feetwidewhen100feetisrequired.  Shenoted that
thisproperty wasoriginally twolotsthatwerethencombined intoonelarger lot.  Shestated that
thelotwidthregulations andhowtheyaremeasured havechanged sincetheoriginal lotswere
created inthe1950s.  Shestated thatother thanthelotwidthrequirement, thesubdivision is
routine.  Staff recommends approval oftherequests, subject totheconditions asincluded inthe
staffreport.  Therehasbeenoneletter received notingconcerns withthesubdivision causinga
decline intheirproperty values.    

Commissioner Gaultarrived atthemeeting.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page2of9

Commissioner Riedelnoted thatoneoftheconditions includes removal ofanaccessory shedand
askedifitwasbecause ifthissubdivision isallowed thatwould leaveanaccessory structure on
alotthathasnomaindwelling.    

Planning Director Darling confirmed thatthiswasthereason forthiscondition andnotedthatit
wasalsonotcompliant intermsofsetbacks.  

Commissioner Eggenberger asked about thewellandthecondition toidentify thelocation ofthe
wellonfutureLot4.    

Planning Director Darling explained thattheCitywants toensure thateachlothasitsown
functioning potable watersource.    

Commissioner Eggenberger confirmed thatthismeant thattherewasnotCitywaterconnected to
thisproperty andifsomeone were tobuildonLot3theywouldhavetodigtheirownwell.  He
askedwhatwouldhappen ifitwasfoundthatthewellwaslocated onLot3.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheywouldhavetodiganewwellforLot4.    

Commissioner Riedelaskedabout theright-of-waytoaccessLot3.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatwhentheyinstallanewservice connection forsewerthey
willneedaright-of-waypermit inorder todoso.    

thEricZehnder, Zehnder Homes, 1030010 Avenue N, Plymouth, noted thathehasbeenableto
determine thatthewellforLot4islocated onLot4andisshownonthesurvey.    

Commissioner Riedelaskediftheproperty owner hadanyobjection toremovaloftheshed.   

Mr. Zehnder stated thattheydonothaveanyobjection tothatcondition.  Henotedthatthecurrent
renter forLot4isplanning topurchase thehome.    

ChairMaddy askediftherewasanyone presentwhowould liketocomment onthisapplication.   

DaleSchrode, 24755Yellowstone Trail, stated thathethought hisneighborhood wasamature
andestablished area.  Hestated thathehaslikedallthesettings forthehomeandnever imagined
thattherewouldberoomtosqueeze anotherhomein.  Hestated thatthisrequestseemstobe
outofplaceandstatedthattheproposed homewillobstruct hisviewtothewestandfeels the
limitedvisibility will increase thedangerofentering theroad.  Hestated thathealsohasconcerns
withchanges inthelandscape andtheenvironmental impact because thatsmallpieceofwoods
offersahugesanctuary foranarrayofwildlife, suchasowls, pileated woodpeckers, wildturkeys,   
anddeer.  There isalsoawholeecosystem therewith treefrogsandother insects.  Hestated
thatitwouldbeashametolosetheexisting habitatandcollapse theecosystem.  Hereadaloud
aquote fromtheShorewood website about itbeinga ‘littlebitcityandlittlebitcountry’.  Hestated
that he understands thatthereisaplantoreplant treesbutthatmeans thatthehabitatwon’t
returnuntil50-100years fromnow.  Hestated thathedoesnotseethisprojectasimproving or
adding benefit tothecommunity orneighborhood andwillhaveanawkward, misfitappearance.   
Heasked thattheCityadhere toitsminimum lotstandards andnotapprove thevariance for
subdivision.  Hestated thatthattheneighborhood hasbeenlongestablished andbelieves it
shouldstaythatwayforthenextgeneration toenjoy.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page3of9

George Greenfield, 24715Yellowstone Trail, askediftheCommission wasawareofthenature
ofthewooded ravineonthewestboundary oftheproperty.  Hestated thatabout3or4years
ago, theconservation district, inconjunction withthenewdevelopment onthegolfcourse, redid
thedrainage system thatgoesthrough theravine fromtheCountry ClubtoLakeMinnewashta.   
Hestated thatthestatedsizeismisleading because thatareacannotbedisturbed without
wrecking thenewdrainage system.  Hestated that itappears thattheexisting driveway willremain
andaskedifthedriveway forthenewhomewouldrunparallel toYellowstone orperpendicular.   
Hestated that, asMr. Schrode pointed out, thatwilldisrupt theconformity andsymmetry ofthe
neighborhood.  Hestated thatavariance of4inches sounds minor, however oneofthethings
thathebelieves perturbs manyresidents isthattheCityrarelyactsonprinciple andeverything is
doneadhoc.  Hestated that4inchesisaviolation oftheCityCode. Hegave theexample ofthe
request thatwasdeniedtodivideaparcelintosmaller lotsalongSeamans andnotedthathesees
aconstant inconsistency inhowtheCityacts.  Hestated that iftheCitydoesapprove thisrequest,  
hebelieves theyshould leteveryone intheDeerfield Addition knowthattheirproperty willbe
susceptible tosubdivision intotwolots.   

Mr. Zehnder stated thathecanaddressafewoftheconcerns thathavebeenraised. Henoted
thatifyoulookatanaerialphoto, thehousesetbacks onthehomes inthatareaarewidelyvaried.  
Hestated thatregarding theconcern aboutanobstructed view, therearecurrently alotoftrees
thereandtheyplantoleavemanyoftheminplaceandthehomewillbebuiltapproximately 60
feetoffthestreet.  Hestated thattheycouldmovethelotline4inches tohaveaconforming lot,  
buttheyfeltitwasalotofworkfor4inchesandfeltitwaseasier toleaveitwhere theoriginal lot
linedivision waslocated.   

Commissioner Gaultconfirmed thatthereason forasking forthisvariance wasthatMr. Zehnder
wasusinganexisting property description forParcelA.   

Mr. Zehnder confirmed thatwascorrectandthiswasapreviously platted lotthathadbeen
combined atsomepointandthisisjusttoreturn ittothatoriginal split.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thatitappears asthoughMr. Zehnder isasking forthevariance to
avoid theexpense ofcreating newproperty descriptions andnewsurveys.    

Mr. Zehnder stated thathewouldnotsayitistheexpense, butjustextrawork, because everything
hasalready beendone.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thattheonlyreason thisishereisbecause of4inches.   

Mr. Zehnder notedthatwhenhepurchased theproperty, theywereunder theimpression that
ParcelAwas100feetwidebecause thatiswhat isshownontheHennepin County site.  He
stated thatitwasaprettybigsurprise whenthesurveycamebackanditwas99.65feetandwas
toldbyPlanning Director Darling thatitwould requireavariance.    

Commissioner Riedelstated thatintheaddition tothecostofsurveying, thereisalsotheargument
tobemadethathaving parallel lotlinesinconsistency isdesirable.    

ChairMaddy closed thepublic inputat7:23p.m.  Hegaveanoverview onhowtheCityregulates
housing andlotsplits.  Heexplained thattheCommission’shandsarekindoftiedforsaying that
theydonotwantmorehomesinthisneighborhood, because Mr. Zehnder hasenoughareafor
twohomesperthezoning.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page4of9

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thathedoesnotsee4inchesasbeingenough torecommend
denialofthevariance request.   

Eggenberger moved, Gault seconded, recommending approval ofthe Minor Subdivision
and Variance toLotWidth at24835 Yellowstone Trail, subject totheconditions included
inthestaff report. Motion passed 4/0.  

Planning Director Darling thatshewilldiscuss thedrainage concern thatwasraisedbyoneofthe
residents withtheCityEngineer priortobringing thistotheCityCouncil.   

B. Variances forSecond Driveway and toFront Yard Setback
Applicant: Zehnder Homes, Inc.  
Location:  4990 Shady Island Point

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview oftherequest foravariance toallowanewhometo
bebuiltat25feetfromthefrontproperty linerather than35feetandavariance toallowasecond
driveway where theregulations allowone.   Shestated thatthisproperty isunique inthatithasa
verynarrowroadway thatservesasthepublicstreet.  Shestated thattheroadisabout10feet
widewhich isgrounds forsupporting thesecond driveway connection.  Shenotedthatthe
homeowner hadsubmitted aletterearlier todaythatstated thatmoving thehomebackwould
require removal ofalarge, mature, catalpa treethat theywouldprefer tosaveandchanging the
location wouldplacethehomeinanareawithsuspect soils.   Staff followed upwiththeapplicant
whoattested thattheground water ishighontheproperty andisabout5feetbelowthesurface
where theyareproposing thenewhome.  Shenoted thattheCity’srequirement isthatthehome
hastobeaminimum of4feetaboveground water.  Staff found thatsomeofthecriteria weremet
toallowthevariance forfrontyardsetback andallcriteria weremettoallowthesecond driveway.   
Staff received twolettersofsupport fortherequests fromnearby neighbors totheproperty.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thattheproposal isforthehometobefurtherbackthanthe
existing home.    

Planning Director Darling explained thattheproposal isforthehometobesubstantially further
backthantheexistinghome.    

Commissioner Eggenberger confirmed thatinformation playsnopartinthisissuebecause they
wouldstillneedavariance.  

Planning Director Darlingstated thatiftheyhadplanstokeeptheexisting footprint ofthehome
thentheywould notneedavariance.  Sheexplained thatwhenyouteardownanoldhomeand
buildanewhome, itisveryhardtokeeptotheexisting footprint.    

ChairMaddy stated thathethinks theCommission canrecognize thattheirproposal would lessen
thenon-conformity.    

thEricZehnder, Zehnder Homes,. 1030010 AvenueN, Plymouth, explained thatwhenhefirst
wrote thevariance application, hefocused moreonthefactthattheyaremaking thecurrent
situation betterwhichhefeltwasastrongandcompelling argument.  Henotedthathehadlost
sightofthefactthattheywanttosavethelargecatalpa tree.  Hestated thatastheymovecloser
tothelakethere isalsoaconcern thatitwouldbeevenclosertotheground waterandnotedthat
theyareunsure aboutthosesoilsbecause theytestedwheretheywouldliketoputthehome, but
didnottestbackfurther thanthat.   Hestated thatonlyabouthalfoftheproposed newhome
wouldbepastthesetback andnotedthatitwillbeat25feetwhere theexisting home isonly



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page5of9

setback5feetandfeelsthattheirproposal ismaking thesituation muchbetter.  Hestated that
manytimespeople trytogetcloser tothelake, buttheyaretryingtogetfurtherawayfromthe
lakewhichhefeelsisunique.  Hestated thatanother thingtoconsider isthatifthehomeis
pushed back, theywillneedtoaddhardcover tothedriveway area.  Hestated thattheproperty
owners havespoken tofourneighbors whoareinsupport, twoofwhichhavesubmitted letters to
theCity.    

Commissioner Riedelaskedwhere thecatalpa treewaslocated.    

Mr. Zehnder pointed thetreeoutonamapandnotedthattheproperty ownerhadalready spent
money tofortify therootssoitcanbesaved andtheirplanswillbetofenceitofftokeep
construction activity awayfromit.  Hestated thatifthehomeispushed backthattreealongwith
afewotherswoulddefinitely belost.    

ChairMaddyopened thisitemupforpublic inputat7:40p.m., however therewasnoonepresent
togiveinput.   

Commissioner Gault statedthatheunderstands theregulations, butthefactthatthenewproposal
reduces theinfringement by20feethefeelsisapointheseesinfavorofgranting thevariance.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thatheagreed thatreducing thenon-conformity isafavorable
factor forhimtovoteinsupportofit.    

Commissioner Riedel stated thathedisagreed.  Hestated thatthisisnotaneasycaseanddoes
notthink thelegalnon-conforming orthegrandfathering concept applies hereifyouareremoving
ahousebecause thenitbecomes likeanewconstruction project.  Hestated thatthere isplenty
ofroomonthislotforafullyconforming residence.  Hestated thattheonly reasonheishesitating
isbecause ofthepotential ground water issuewhichcouldswayhim.  Hestated thathewould
likemore information ontheground water issue.  

Commissioner Gaultstated thatheiscurious about theotherhomesonthisroadandwhere they
fitintothelots.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatshedidlooktoseeifthehomes weregenerally meeting the
setback fromthepublicstreetandfoundtheotherhomes intheareado, withonegarage located
fairlyclose tothestreet.    

Commissioner Gaultasked ifthosehomes werebuiltunderthenewregulations andwerenewer
homes.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatshedidnotcheck theconstruction datesofthosehomes.   
Sheexplained thattheruleschanged inthemid-1980s tothesetback fromthewater levelofthe
lake.  Shestated thatnowthesetback isbasedonanelevation point forthelakesoitstays
consistent.    

ChairMaddy stated thathehasbeenonthePlanning Commission for9yearsandhasnever
seenanyone trytogetfarther fromthelake.  Hestated thatthisisdefinitely aunique situation in
theCity.    

Commissioner Gaultasked about therationale ofthehomebeingatanangleandnotedthatif
thehomewasrotated andmovedbackslightly, itwould probably meet therequirements.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page6of9

Mr. Zehnder stated thathethinks therewouldstillbetheissueofgettingcloser tothelake, the
catalpa treewouldbeindanger, andtheviewwaswhytheywereproposing thatparticular angle.   
Hestated thatitishisfault thattheydidnotfocusontheground water issueandthecatalpa tree
aspartoftheirvariance application.  Hestated thathesimply focused onthefactthattheywould
begetting thefrontyardsetback somuchbetter thanitcurrently isandfurther fromthelake.  He
stated thathedoesnotwanthislackofdiligence inthatmanner toharmthehomeowners chance
forthevariance.  Hestatedthatitwasnotjustafabricated reasonbecause ofPlanning Director
Darling’srecommendation because theground water issueandthecatalpa treearelegitimate
concerns.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thathelikesthefactthattheyareincreasing thesetback by20feet,  
butfeelsthatCommissioner Riedel hasraisedavalidpointabout themtakingdownthehome
andbeingconsidered asnewconstruction.    

Commissioner Riedelnotedthathestillmaybeinclined tovoteagainst thisrequest, butfeelsan
argument couldbemade foritbeingsuchaunique roadthathasmanystructures thatarequite
closetothesmall roadandtheneighborhood doesnothaveconsistent setbacks.    

Commissioner Gaultaskedabout theexisting shedthatislocated intheright-of-way.   

Planning Director Darling explained thatthatshedhasbeentheresincebefore theshoreland
ordinance prohibited shedsbythelakeandtheCityisnotasking themtoremove theexisting
shed.    

Eggenberger moved, Gault seconded, recommending approval ofthe variance requests
for front setback andasecond driveway, subject totheconditions included inthe staff
report.    

Commissioner Gaultnotedthattheaddressoftheproperty wasnotmentioned inthemotion.   

Motion amended byEggenberger, second amended byGault, torecommend approval of
thevariance requests for front setback andasecond driveway, forproperty located at4990
Shady Island Point, subject tothe conditions listed inthestaff report. Motion passed 3/1
Riedel opposed).  

C. Variance toMinimum Home Width
Applicant:  Ben and Meghan Becker
Location:  6180 Cathcart Drive

Planning Director Darling explained thattheproperty owners areproposing toremove allthe
existing structures fromthesiteandbuildanewhomewithavariance request tobuildahome20
feetwidewhere22feetisrequired.  Shestated that thenewhomewouldhavetwodetached
garages thattheywouldusetostoretheirpersonal vehicles andequipment.  Thestructures would
havecedar-stained lapsiding withmetalroofs.  Staff recommends approval, subject tothe
conditions included inthestaffreport.  Shenotedthatalthough theapplicant doesnotmeetall
thevariance criteria, theapplicant hasindicated thattheyhavedesigned thehometomaximize
solarandenergy efficiency which isencouraged bytheCity’sordinances.    

BenBecker, 6180Cathcart Drive, explained thethought process behind thehomewidth isrelated
tosolar, energy efficiency andpassive heating whichareimportant tothem.  Hestated thattheir
architect believes that20feetwideisoptimal toallowforpassive heating aswellasallow natural



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page7of9

lighttoenter thehome.  Hereadaloudaportion ofabiography writtenabout theirarchitect David
Salmela.    

Commissioner Eggenberger askedwhytheywould notjustchange thedesignandincrease itby
2morefeet.   

Mr. Becker stated thatitispossible, buttheyarerespecting thearchitects designwhofeel this
wastheoptimalsizetoallow lighttoflooditandallowforpassive heating.   

ChairMaddy asked ifthiswasapproved howsoontheyplanned tobreakground.    

Mr. Becker stated thattheywould liketobreak groundassoonaspossible.    

ChairMaddy opened thisitemforpublic inputat8:02p.m.  

George Gleason, 6130Cathcart Drive, stated thathisonlyconcern isforthewater tableandrun- 
offbecause hehasalwayshadproblems inhisbasement withsumppumps constantly running.   
Hestated thatwhenthechange overshappened across thestreetandthenewwater towerwent
it, itmadeabigdifference athisplace, buthestillgetsflooded inthespring.  Hestated thatifMr.  
Becker isputtingafullbasement, hisconcern ishowhighitwillhavetobeandwould require
extra landfillwhich thenwould causerun-offtocometohisproperty.    

Therebeingnoadditional public input, ChairMaddy closed thisportionofthemeeting at8:03
p.m.  

ChairMaddyaskedabout thecurrent amountofimpervious surface versus whatisbeing
proposed.    

Commissioner Riedelstated thatitis7% versus4%.   

ChairMaddy stated thatisalmost cutting thehomeinhalf.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thatwhenhelooksatA 100, itappears asthough someone is
planning todivide thislotwhichwill impact theimpervious surface.   

Awomanspoke fromtheaudience (inaudible).   

Planning Director Darling stated thatthecurrent amountofimpervious surface ontheproperty is
7.6% andtheyareproposing toreduce theamount ofimpervious surface coverage.  Shestated
thatherrecollection isthatthishomeisnotproposing abasement because ofthehighwater table
inthearea.    

Mr. Becker stated thatwascorrectandtheywerenotproposing abasement even though there
iscurrentlyabasement.    

Commissioner Eggenberger askedhowtheCitycameupwiththewidthrequirement of22feet.    

Planning Director Darlingstated that therewereseveral changes toStatestatute inthemid- 
1970s-tomid1980s regarding manufactured housing andmobilehomes.  Shestated thatmost
citiesputtheminimum housesizesintotheirordinances atthattimejusttomakesurethat the
housing stockremained onpermanent foundations andwaslargeenough tomaintain stable



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page8of9

property values. ShenotedthattheCity’sminimum housesizeis22x30 which isabout660
square feet.  

ChairMaddystatedthathedoesnotliketheminimum requirement andwould liketofinda
practical difficulty tosupport therequest.  Hestated thathefeelsthisisareally interesting design
foraesthetics andenergyefficiency whichhewould liketoencourage.    

Commissioner Riedel stated thathewould echothatsentiment.  Hestated thathedisagrees with
arestriction onsomebody building anenergy efficient, innovative home.  Hestated thathefeels
thatifsomebody wants tohaveasmallhome, theyshouldbeallowed tohaveasmallhomeand
shouldnotbeforcedbytheCitytohavealargerhome.  Henotedthatheisalsostruggling tofind
arationale forgranting thevariance because thisisallnewconstruction.    

ChairMaddy stated thathefeelstheordinance waswritten toprevent depreciating housing stock
which typically things likemobile homesdo.  Hestated thatthishomeistheoppositeofthat
situation.  Hestated thattheCommission couldrecommend denialbased onastrict interpretation
oftheordinance andhopethattheCouncil reverses it, ortheycansaythatthepractical difficulty
isthattheyaretryingtodosomething innovative andsmart.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thatheandhiswifelovethelowwintersunthatstreams through their
homeandloveitinthesummertime whenitishighenough thatitdoesn’tstream intothehouse
andoverheatit.  Hestated thattheirhomeis26feetwide, buttheyarenotusingitforpassive
heating.  Hestated thathedoesn’treallybuyintothefactthat2feetmakes thatmuchofa
difference inthepassive heating capability, particularly withthewindows proposed inthedesign.   
Hestated thatheunderstands bothsidesoftheargument, butquestions where thiswillstopand
notedhisconcern forconsistency inrulingsandrecommendations ontheserequests.  Hestated
thatheisnotadamantly opposed totherequest butisalsonotgunghoonit.   

Commissioner Riedelaskedabout theminimum widthof22feetandwhether anyportion ofthe
homecouldbemorenarrow thanthatmeasurement.  Heaskedifatwo-footbumpoutwould
satisfy therequirement.    

Planning Director Darling readaloud fromtheordinance whichstates, “notlessthan30feet in
lengthandnotlessthan22feetinwidthover theentireminimum length.  Measurements shallnot
takeintoaccount ofoverhang orotherprojections beyond theprinciple walls.”    

Mr. Becker stated thatefficiency ofresources suchasthesolarandpassive heating isonething
butthereisalsoefficiency ofmaterials thatshouldbeconsidered.  Hestated thatincreasing itby
twofeet isanother 200square feetofmaterials andthatisunnecessary forthemandtheirneeds.    

ChairMaddy stated thathewillvotetorecommend approval ofthisrequest andwould liketoadd
discussion oftheminimum requirement totheCity’sworkplan.  Hestated thatifpeople wantto
haveasmallhome, hefeelstheyshouldbeallowed toaslongasitdoesn’tdepreciate property
values.   

Commissioner Riedelnotedthatperhaps itcould justexplicitly prohibit mobilehomes because he
thinkswasthewhole rationale forthislanguage.    

ChairMaddy stated thattherearenowsomeveryhighendmanufactured homes, sohefeelsitis
worthaconversation inthefuture todiscuss thisissueandpotential improve theCode.    



CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page9of9

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thathewouldnotwanttovotetorecommend denialwiththe
hopethattheCityCouncil wouldoverturn thatrecommendation.    

Eggenberger moved, Gault seconded, recommending approval ofthevariance request to
minimum home width forproperty located at6180 Cathcart Drive, subject tothe conditions
asincluded inthestaff report. Motion passed 4/0.  

6. OTHER BUSINESS

7. REPORTS

Council Meeting Report

Council Liaison Johnson reported onmatters considered andactions takenduringCouncil’s
recentmeeting.  

Draft Next Meeting Agenda

Planning Director Darling stated thereisaSpecial HomeOccupation permit andaCommercial
siteplanslated fortheDecember 7, 2021, Planning Commission meeting.   

Commissioner Gaultcommented thattheinformation regarding NorthOaks included wasvery
interesting reading andasked whyitwasprovided totheCommission.   

Planning Director Darlingexplained thatwhenshefirststartedattheCityshehadgottenfeedback
thatCommissioners wouldbenefit fromhaving someeducational materials andhavehershare
newsarticles thatwerepertinent toPlanning Commissions.  Shestated thatthisparticular article
wasincluded intheirpacket materials because shethought thereweresomeinteresting points in
thearticleaftertheirlandusetraining sessionprovided afewweeksagobytheLeague of
Minnesota Cities.    

Commissioner Gaultstated that itshows thatelections haveconsequences withthechange in
theircouncil. Hestated thatthepriorcouncil hadapproved itandthenewcouncil shotitdown.  
Hestated thathesuspects thattherewillbealawsuit overthisissue.   

Planning Director Darling notedthatthearticle indicates thattheyarebeingsued.   

8. ADJOURNMENT

Riedel moved, Gault seconded, adjourning thePlanning Commission Meeting of
November 16, 2021, at8:29P.M. Motion passed 4/0.  



BRENDA
5A































































































































BRENDA
5B





















7D
MEETINGTYPE

REGULAR

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:   UrbanFarmAnimalsDiscussion

Meeting Date:   November 22, 2021

Prepared By:    Marie Darling, Planning Director

Attachments:  Potential Ordinance Amendments forUrban Farm Animals

Background:  InSeptember ofthisyear, theCityCouncil adopted someadditional
standards forurban farmanimals, butlistened toconcerns fromresidents regarding
nuisance issues likechickens flyingoutofenclosures andescaping during coop
cleanings, etc.   

Staffhasresearched means tocontain chickens andother fowl. Below isasummary of
theresearch andrecommendations onhowtoproceed.  

Restrictlotsizeforfowlandincreasesetbackstoproperty linesforenclosures and
coops. Staffre-reviewed manyofourneighboring cities’ ordinances forexamples onlot
areaandsetbacks toseehowothercities regulate them. Minnetonka requires oneacre
tohaveanyfarmanimals, including fowl. Chanhassen regulates thenumber ofchickens
basedonthesizeofthelot – fourforproperties underanacre, eightonproperties of1
to2.5acres, etc.  

Setbacks varybycity, withsuburban citieshaving greater setbacks thanurbancities.  
Seenextpageforatablesummarizing thecities’ setbacks.   

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    



City Sideabutting Side Rear Adjacent Water
ndastreet (2 Home bodies

front)  
Bloomington 50, butnotin 30 30 50

frontyards
Chanhassen Sameas 10 10 25

house
Chaska Notinfront 10 10 50 15

yard
EdenPrairie Notinfront 10 10 50 15, notin

yards buffers
Minneapolis Notinfront 10 10 20

yards
Minnetonka Notinfront Farther

yards than
from
owner’s
home

Plymouth Notinfront 20 20 Notin
yard buffers

Shakopee Notinfront Notinside 10 50
yard yards

Shorewood Notinfront 10 (inrear Sameas Farther
yards yard)  house than

from
owner’s
home

St. Paul 5 5

Staff recommendation:    
o Anincrease inthesetbacks fromthesideproperty linestoatleast30feet

toprovide greater distance fromtheenclosure totheproperty lineto
reduce thelikelihood anescaped fowlwouldcross theproperty lines.  

o Aminimum lotsizeofoneacre (43,570square feet) to ½ acre (21,780
square feet) sothatthelotsarelargeenough tohavespace forthe
enclosures, coopsandsetbacks.  

Requirechickencoopsandenclosureareastobefullyenclosedwithnetsor
screens toprevent fowlfromescaping. Bloomington, Chanhassen, Chaska, Plymouth
andShakopee require enclosures tobefullyenclosed ortohavenetsover thetop.  

Staff recommendation:  
o Addadefinition forfowlenclosure/runthatrequires theconfinement area

tobefullyenclosed withnetsorscreens onthetop.  



o Consider addingaminimum sizefortheenclosure/runbasedonthe
number ofchickens.  

Requirewingclipping. Noneoftheothercities thatstaff reviewed required wing
clipping orevenmentioned it. Ireviewed twowebsites (Raising Happy Chickens and
Backyard Poultry) anditseems verycommon. Itinvolves trimming thefirst10feathers
attheendofonewingsothatthebirdlacks thebalance needed forflight. According to
bothwebsites, thepractice doesnotharmorhurtthembecause thequills lackblood
supply andnerves. Because thewingfeathers moltandgrowbackeachyear, thewing
clipping mustberepeated annually onthenewfeathers. Somechicken owners are
opposed towingclipping foraesthetic orethical reasons.   

Staff recommendation:  
o Noamendments torequire wingclipping. While thewingclipping maynot

harmorhurttheanimal, iftheCityrequires thepractice staffhastoenforce it.  
Citystaffdoesnothavetheappropriate training orthetimenecessary to
catcheachbirdandverifywingtrimming ateachannual inspection. Annual
inspections forchickens wouldbemoreefficient iftheinspectors wereableto
concentrate onthecoop/enclosures andnuisance issues andnotcheckall
thechickens.  

Additionalrecommendation:  
Addstandards forrejecting permit application orrevoking permits.  
Review standards forapplicability torabbits andbees.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  Costofpublishing anyadditional ordinance
amendments andnoticing current permit holders.   

NextSteps:  Subject toCouncil direction, staffwouldbegindrafting amendments tothe
ordinance. Someoftheabove amendments would requireapublichearing through the
Planning Commission (lotsize/setbacks), butothers couldbeapproved solelybythe
CityCouncil (enclosure requirements/wingclipping/permitdenial-revocation).  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 22, 2021
Page 6of13

D. Urban Farm Animal Discussion

Planning Director Darling explained thatthisitemisacontinuation ofprevious discussion
regarding chickens andother fowl.  Shestated that theCouncil recently approved changes tothe
standards forurbanfarmanimals, butwereconcerned afterhearing fromsome residents that
chickens areconstantly noisyandfrequently escape fromtheirenclosures.  TheCouncil directed
staff tocomeupwithsomemeansofcontaining thechickens andasked themtolookspecifically
intoenclosures andwingclipping.  Shenoted thatstaffalsolookedatthepossibility ofrequiring
more landinordertobeallowed tohavechickens orother fowl.  Following theirresearch, they
arenotmaking anyrecommendations regarding wingclipping asinspecting andenforcing that
practice wouldbetimeconsuming andaninefficient useoftheinspector’stime.  Staff is
recommending thatthelotsizeandsetback beincreased fromthesideproperty linestobegreater
thanwhatiscurrently inplace.  Shestated thatthisrecommendation wouldbeinthehopethat
thereismorespacebetween thecoopandtheproperty lines.  Theyarealsorecommending that
theenclosures befullyenclosed whichcould include netsorscreening overthetopandnoted
thattheCouncil maywanttoconsider aminimum sizedenclosure basedonthenumber of
chickens andadding standards forrejecting orrevoking permits, andexempting rabbitsandbees
frommanyofthenewstandards.    

MayorLabadie asked iftherewasanyone presentwhowould liketospeak regarding urban farm
animals, however, therewasnoonepresent forthisissue.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thathisonlyconcern isiftheCityhasanycurrent permitholders
thathavealotthatislessthantheproposed halfacre.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheydoandhowthiswouldbewrittenupandstructured is
sothatitwould apply tonewpermit requests foraminimum sizedlot.  Shestated thatthiswould
meanthatallthepeoplewhocurrently havechickens canmaintain thesamenumber ofchickens
until theyvoluntarily decide todiscontinue thepractice.    

Councilmember Gorham askedabout thereviewofenclosures andwhether therewasgenerally
aminimum sizelisted.  Henoted thatiftheCouncil weretorecommend asize, hedoesnotthink
hewouldknowwhere tobegin.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatthereareseveral standards basedonsomeofthewebsites
shefound.  Shenotedthatsimilar tominimum housesizes, itisacertain square footage per
chicken orfowlandisbasedonmaintaining minimum standards.  Shestated thatproperty owners
couldgolarger iftheycanaccommodate thatontheirproperty.    

Councilmember Gorham askediftheycouldgolargerbutwouldthenbesubject toaccessory
structures andbuilding permit limitations.    

Planning Director Darling statedthatwascorrect.    

Councilmember Gorham askedifshewaslooking forinputfromtheCouncil onaminimum size.    

Planning Director Darling notedthatsheplanstopropose some options totheCouncil following
herresearch, iftheCouncil decides tomoveforward.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 22, 2021
Page 7of13

Councilmember Callies stated thatshethinks theproposed changes sound reasonable toher,  
particularly thefullyenclosed enclosures.    

Councilmember Gorham asked ifmostofthecurrent permitholders havefullyenclosed areas.    

Planning Director Darlingstated thatmostofthecurrent chicken owners haveenclosed coops,  
butthereareafewthatallowtheirchickens tofreerangeandarejustenclosing themwithfencing.    
Shestated thattheCitywilldefine ‘enclosure’ andrequire thatiteitherhaveatop, ascreen, ora
netonit.    

Councilmember Gorham expressed hisappreciation toPlanning Director Darling forhowmuch
timeshehasspent researching thisissue.  

Councilmember Callies askedifherunderstanding wascorrect thatthisthatwouldstillapply to
theexisting permitholders sotheywouldhavetofullyenclose theircoops, butwouldnothaveto
meettheminimum lotsize.    

Planning Director Darling confirmed thatthiswasacorrect understanding.    

There was consensus ofthe Council that these recommendations arereasonable and
directed staff toproceed with drafting theamendments totheordinance.  



BRENDA
5C




	Agenda
	Draft Minutes
	5A Variance to Setback to OHWL for Dock
	5B Urban Farm Animal City Code Amendments
	5C Work Program & Meeting Schedule for 2022



